
 

 

 
 
Notice of Meeting of 
 
LOCAL COMMUNITY NETWORK - VALE OF FROME 

 
Thursday, 8 February 2024 at 7.00 pm 
 
Wanstrow Village Hall, Frome Road, Wanstrow, 
BA4 4SX 
 
To: The members of the Local Community Network - Vale of Frome 
 
Chair: Max Wide   
Vice-chair: Adam Boyden   
 
Councillor Adam Boyden Councillor Barry Clarke Councillor Shane Collins 
Councillor Dawn Denton Councillor Martin Dimery Councillor Michael Dunk 
Councillor Philip Ham Councillor Helen Kay Councillor Claire Sully 
Councillor Alex Wiltshire Beckington Berkley 
Buckland Dinham Great Elm Frome Town Council 
Hemington, Hardington, Foxcote Lullington Mells 
Norton St Philip Nunney Rode 
Selwood Tellisford Trudoxhill 
Upton Noble Wanstrow Whatley 
Witham Friary   
 

 
For further information about the meeting, including how to join the meeting virtually, 
please contact LCN Team lcn@somerset.gov.uk. 
 
All members of the public are welcome to attend our meetings and ask questions or 
make a statement by giving advance notice in writing or by e-mail to the Monitoring 

Public Agenda Pack



 

 

Officer at email: democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk by 5pm on Friday, 2 
February 2024. 
 
This meeting will be open to the public and press, subject to the passing of any 
resolution under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A: Access to Information.  
 
The meeting will be webcast and an audio recording made. 
 
Issued by (the Proper Officer) on Wednesday, 31 January 2024 

 

mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 
 

Local Community Network - Vale of Frome - 7.00 pm Thursday, 8 February 2024 
  
Core Membership  

 

5 - 6 

 
Click here to join the online meeting  
 
 

 

  
We’d love to see you in person, but if you can’t make it this time, we’re 
trialling a hybrid set-up, so please use this MS Teams Link  
  
Microsoft Teams meeting  
Join on your computer, mobile app or room device  
Click here to join the meeting  
Meeting ID: 317 314 731 062  
Passcode: mvfvkC  
Download Teams | Join on the web 
Or call in (audio only)  
+44 1823 772277,,249914451#   United Kingdom, Taunton  
Phone Conference ID: 249 914 451#  
Find a local number | Reset PIN  
   
1   Apologies for Absence  

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
  

2   Welcome to Wanstrow  
  

3   Declarations of Interest  
 
To receive and note any declarations of interests in respect of any matters included 
on the agenda for consideration at this meeting. 
  
(The other registrable interests of Councillors of Somerset Council, arising from 
membership of City, Town or Parish Councils and other Local Authorities will 
automatically be recorded in the minutes: City, Town & Parish Twin Hatters - 
Somerset Councillors 2023 ) 
  

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OWI1ZjZiMmYtZmFmMS00NGQyLTljYTItMGY2MTk4OTRjODNl%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22b524f606-f77a-4aa2-8da2-fe70343b0cce%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22be753587-8c25-44a0-8666-6f585f83d52c%22%7d
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-teams/download-app
https://www.microsoft.com/microsoft-teams/join-a-meeting
tel:+441823772277,,249914451
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/4e217883-910c-4f2a-a890-19f4d750e93c?id=249914451
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/usp/pstnconferencing
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=City%20Town%20%20Parish%20Twin%20Hatters%20-%20Somerset%20Councill&ID=378&RPID=284137
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=City%20Town%20%20Parish%20Twin%20Hatters%20-%20Somerset%20Councill&ID=378&RPID=284137


 

 

4   Notes from the Previous Meeting (Pages 7 - 16) 
 
To approve the notes from the previous meeting. 
  

5   Actions since the Previous Meeting  
  

6   Public Question Time (issues not covered on the agenda)  
 
The Chair to advise of any questions, statements or petitions received that are not 
covered by items on the agenda for the meeting on which members of the public 
have requested to speak. 
  

7   Response to the Financial Emergency - How have other parishes in Somerset 
responded?  What has your parish considered?  
 
To discuss matters arising from the notes not covered in later agenda items. 
  

8   Discussion: Is there anything that we can do together?  
 
In each of the following four areas: 
  

       Assets and Infrastructure 
       Thriving for All 
       Disadvantage and Vulnerability 
       Sustainability and Resilience 

  
Feedback 
  
  

9   Dates and Themes of Future Meetings  
  



Core Membership 
 
Unitary Councillors: 
Councillor Adam Boyden    
Councillor Barry Clarke    
Councillor Shane Collins    
Councillor Dawn Denton    
Councillor Martin Dimery    
Councillor Michael Dunk    
Councillor Philip Ham    
Councillor Helen Kay    
Councillor Claire Sully    
Councillor Alex Wiltshire    
 
City, Town and Parish Councils (one voting member from each): 
Beckington  
Berkley  
Buckland Dinham  
Great Elm  
Frome  
Hemington  
Lullington  
Mells  
Norton St. Philip  
Nunney  
Rode  
Selwood  
Tellisford  
Trudoxhill  
Upton Noble  
Wanstrow  
Whatley  
Witham Friary 
 
Other Stakeholders (one voting member from each): 
Avon and Somerset Police  
NHS  
Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue  
Education  
Spark Somerset  
Society Local Council Clerks  

Page 5

Agenda Annex

https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=122
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=132
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=135
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=143
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=144
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=147
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=158
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=169
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=217
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=222


Somerset Association Local Councils  
Somerset Activity Sports Partnership  
Community Council for Somerset  
Citizens Advice  
Department of Work and Pensions  
Somerset Rivers Authority  
Somerset Local Nature Partnership  
Business Chamber  
Frome Learning Partnership  
Mind in Somerset  
PCN Lead Frome Medical Practice  
YMCA  
Young Somerset  
Trinity Church 

Page 6



 
 
Somerset Council 
County Hall, Taunton 
Somerset, TA1 4DY 
 
 
 
 

 

Draft notes of a Meeting of the Local Community Network Vale of Frome held online 

on Thursday, 7 December 2023 at 7.00 pm. 

LCN Core Membership in Attendance: 

Frome Town Councillor Max Wide (Chair) 

Somerset Councillor Adam Boyden 

Somerset Councillor Dawn Denton 

Somerset Councillor Helen Kay 

Somerset Councillor Theo Butt Philip 

Beckington Parish Councillor Kevin Bishop  

Buckland Dinham Parish Councillor Sarah Barnett 

Frome Town Councillor Anita Collier 

Norton St Philip Parish Councillor Ian Hasell  

Nunney Parish Councillor Bill Stock  

Rode Parish Councillor Mike Salmon  

Wanstrow Parish Councillor Michael Gay  

 

Other Attendance: 

Buckland Dinham Parish Councillor John Reckless  

Nunney Parish Councillor Sally Foster  

Vicar Ian Snares 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

Charlie Bonham-Christie, Marston Park 

Diane Sleigh, Buckland Dinham 

Lucy Travis, Bath and North East Council 
 

Officer Attendance: 

Matthew Reed, Avon and Somerset Police 

Daniel Jefferies, Avon and Somerset Police 

Jeremy Fry, Service Manager, Area Highways  

Nick Cowling, Service Manager, Transport 

Richard Selwyn, Service Director, Commissioning and Performance 

Emily Window, LCN Team 

Kate Hellard, LCN Team 

Adrian Moore, LCN Team  

Debbie Haines, LCN Team 

Claire Dicken, Democratic Services 

 

Opening remarks: The Chair said the Network had been looking forward to meeting 

in Wanstrow.  However, the weather warnings had meant this meeting would be held 

online.  

 

1. Apologies for absence  

Apologies for absence were received from Anthony Battersby, Tellisford Parish 
Meeting, Somerset Councillor Martin Dimmery, Rode Parish Councillor Peter Travis 
and Somerset Councillor Barry Clarke.  
 

2. Declaration of Interest  

Page 8



 

There were no declarations of interest received.  

3. Approve the notes of the last meeting  

The notes of the previous meeting held on 5 October 2023 were approved as a 

correct record, subject to the addition of Mike Salmon who had been in attendance 

online.  And the correction of Max Wride, which should read Max Wide.    

4. Actions since the last meeting 

The Network had agreed that a Community Plan would be developed.  A 

questionnaire had been prepared for parishes.  The results of which would help the 

Network understand the shared priories and thus create themes for the Community 

Plan and the agenda for future meetings of the Network.  

5. Somerset Council Financial Update and discussion 

Somerset Council had declared a financial emergency.  The Chair explained what a 

Section 114 Notice would mean for the Somerset Council.   

Somerset Councillor Theo Butt-Philips, Executive Lead for Transformation and 

Human Resources, was invited to speak.  He explained the Council’s increasing costs.  

There was currently a financial gap in next year’s budget, in the region of, £87million.  

The Council was looking at how to change services in order to balance the accounts.  

Changes included the disposal of assets, the cutting of some services and the 

devolution of others. 

He confirmed the Somerset Council would not force any Town or Parish Council to 

take on services.   

During the discussion that followed these points were raised: 

• Some Parish Councillors were disinclined to offer help at this stage because 

the services had not been costed yet.  The Network noted Somerset Council 

had begun costing the services that had attracted the most interest from 

parishes.  

• There was concern that residents could end up paying twice if the parishes 

began providing services which had previously been costed into the Somerset 

Council services.  

Page 9



 

• The Network noted the finance gap was not expected to be as high in future 

years.  

• Taking on services would be permanent, but the financial crisis would only be 

temporary (over a few years).   

• It was noted that it was possible for the Council to avoid a Section 114 Notice, 

but it would be incredibly hard to achieve.  Confirmation of the situation would 

be known at the budget setting stage in February 2024.   

• Parish Councils would be wise to set aside some contingency funds. 

• It was noted that larger Parish Councils were in a better position to take 

services.  

• Smaller parishes may have useful contacts.  For instance, they may have local 

sports clubs who could be paid to carry out some maintenance.  

• Some parishes may not need to take on any services themselves because the 

community could rally around (like mowing the grass etc).   

• Some Parishes were proud of their low precepts.  And the value for money 

they had been able to offer in the past.  There was concern that large 

increases in the precept were already necessary just to cover existing costs. 

• Some parishes may wish to get together with neighbouring parishes to create 

'clusters' to deliver some services. 

• Somerset should ask for fines for early re-payment of PWLB loans to be 

delayed or not imposed. 

• Parish Councils should be given more guidance on what services might be 

particularly under threat.  In the Vale of Frome there was perhaps less to cut 

than other parts of Somerset.  Members required more detail. 

• Members queried how much the Somerset Council currently spent in the Vale 

of Frome on services.  The concern was parishes could spend a lot of energy 

devolving services from the Somerset Council to save a small amount of 

money.  Members felt they needed more data before any decisions could be 

made. 

The Chair asked the Network to complete a Poll which had been based on a letter 

which the Leader of Somerset Council had sent to parishes.  Some Members were 

not able to complete the poll.  The LCN team agreed to send the poll separately 

afterwards.  

Page 10



 

 

The Results of the Poll 1 were: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Results of the Poll 2 were: 

 

Economic 
development 
and Tourism 

Leisure, 
Arts 
and 

Culture 

Community 
wellbeing 

and 
Resilience 

Transport Open 
Space's 

Street 
Scene's Highways Schools Public 

Toilets 
Waste 

Services 

Which of 
these 

might you 
be 

prepared 
to do 

something 
about? 

10% 8% 18% 10% 10% 16% 8% 8% 6% 4% 

 
 

 

10%

8%

18%

10%
10%

16%

8%

8%

6%
4%

Economic development and Tourism Leisure, Arts and Culture Community wellbeing and Resilience

Transport Open Space's Street Scene's

Highways Schools Public Toilets

Waste Services

Which of these might you be prepared to do something about?

Page 11



 

 

 

 

 

10%0%
17%

20%
3%3%

20%

10%

7%
10%

Economic development and Tourism Leisure, Arts and Culture

Community wellbeing and Resilience Transport

Open Space's Street Scene's

Highways Schools

Public Toilets Waste Services

Critical

9%
11%

11%

10%
14%

12%

11%

10%
3%9%

Economic development and Tourism Leisure, Arts and Culture

Community wellbeing and Resilience Transport

Open Space's Street Scene's

Highways Schools

Public Toilets Waste Services

Important

Page 12



 

 

 

 

On the whole parishes were interested in having greater control over some assets 

within their parish.  As well as projects which contributed to community wellbeing.  

 

6. Road Safety and Highways Presentation and discussion 

12%

20%

4%
4%

8%8%0%
12%

12%

20%

Economic development and Tourism Leisure, Arts and Culture

Community wellbeing and Resilience Transport

Open Space's Street Scene's

Highways Schools

Public Toilets Waste Services

Low Importance

13%

7%
0%0%
7%

13%

0%7%

53%

0%

Economic development and Tourism Leisure, Arts and Culture

Community wellbeing and Resilience Transport

Open Space's Street Scene's

Highways Schools

Public Toilets Waste Services

Unimportant

Page 13



 

Consideration of road safety and highways at previous meetings of the Network had 

resulted in questions for discussion. 

Nick Cowling, Service Manager Transport Data, Road Safety and Traffic Control was 

invited to speak.   

He said the Vale of Frome LCN had recorded the largest number of fatal collisions 

during the period under analysis with a total of 14 incidents which equated to 12% of 

the total for the whole of Somerset.  

Matthew Reed, Avon and Somerset Police said the Police were aware of the 

statistics.  He said the Police and partners were working together to change 

behaviours and improve road safety.  Speed watch community groups were 

particularly useful for recording number plates and speeds.  Other work carried out by 

the Police included enforcement, increased visibility of Police Officers and road 

safety education in schools.  

In response to questions, he confirmed that apart from letters and personal visits 

there was no further formal action the Police could take as a result of information 

given to the Police by speed watch groups.  

The Chair of Rode Parish Council asked the Network to note that an agreement had 

been made to reduce the speed limit on the A361 in Rode.  However, they were still 

waiting two years later for the TRO to introduce the limit.  The Service Manager 

agreed to investigate the issue and report directly to Rode Parish Council.   

Members of the Network agreed that the installation of safety cameras and the 

introduction of new speed limits were very slow to achieve.  It was noted that any 

changes to road safety measures were heavily driven by data, rather than local 

requests.  

There was a discussion about Section 106 money and how this was protected for the 

purposes for which it was intended, which often meant road safety improvements.  

Members noted a new Highway Steward scheme.  This was based on a pilot which 

had been carried out in Exmoor.  For a cost, the Steward would visit parish and towns 

to carry out maintenance works to the highways.  This would give parishes greater 

Page 14



 

control of the maintenance in their area.  Members were interested to know whether 

the Steward could help with incidents of fly tipping.  

Members requested that the slides be sent to them after the meeting, including the 

map which showed the collision hotspots in the area.  And details of the Highway 

Steward Scheme.   

The Chair thanked the guest speakers.  He encouraged discussions to carry on 

outside of the meeting.  He said the Vale of Frome LCN Steering Group would also 

continue to meet to prepare for the next meeting.  

 

7. Dates of future meetings  

The Chair advised that the provisional future meeting dates were: 

• Thursday, 8 February 2024 Beckington Village Hall 

• Tuesday, 23 April 2024(venue to be confirmed) 

 

The meeting closed at approximately 9.05 pm.  

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 Core Membership
	4 Notes from the Previous Meeting

